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?\ FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
Q ‘ FORT WORTH DIVISION

3
\%\&P\’ IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

BNSF RAILWAY COMPANY, THE
KANSAS CITY SOUTHERN
RAILWAY COMPANY, CSX
TRANSPORTATION, INC.,
NORFOLK SOUTHERN RAILWAY
COMPANY, AND UNION PACIFIC
RAILROAD COMPANY,

Plaintiffs, 4 - 09 CV _ 37 6 - Y

V. Civil Action No.

UNITED TRANSPORTATION UNION
AND BROTHERHOOD OF
LOCOMOTIVE ENGINEERS &
TRAINMEN,

O U O L LR LD U L L L D DD O LD LD O O LOn

Defendants.

PLAINTIFFS’ ORIGINAL COMPLAINT
TO THE HONORABLE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT:
Plaintiffs hereby allege as follows:

1. This action arises under the Railway Labor Act (“RLA”), 45 U.S.C. §§ 151 et seq.
Plaintiffs BNSF Railway Company (“BNSF”), The Kansas City Southern Railway Company
(“KCS”), CSX Transportation, Inc. (“CSXT”), Norfolk Southern Railway Company (“NS”), and
Union Pacific Railroad Company (“UP”) are currently engaged in labor disputes with defendants
United Transportation Union (“UTU”) and Brotherhood of Locomotive Engineers & Trainmen
(“BLET”) over several issues arising from the pending implementation of new Hours of Service
requirements imposed by the Rail Safety Improvement Act of 2008 (“RSIA”), P.L. 110-432,

Div. A, Title I, § 108(a), 122 Stat. 4860. Plaintiffs seek a declaratory judgment, pursuant to 28

1058408 _1
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U.S.C. § 2201, that these labor disputes are “minor disputes” within the meaning of the RLA,
and are therefore subject to mandatory and binding arbitration.
Jurisdiction, Parties and Venue

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
§§ 1331 and 1337. This case presents an actual controversy arising under 45 U.S.C. § 151 et
seq. within the jurisdiction of the Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2201(a).

3. Plaintiff BNSF is a common carrier by rail under the Interstate Commerce Act
and a carrier as defined in Section 1 First of the RLA, 45 U.S.C. § 151 First. BNSF maintains its
principal office at 2500 Lou Menk Drive, Fort Worth, Texas

4. Plaintiff KCS is a common carrier by rail under the Interstate Commerce Act and
a carrier as defined in Section 1 First of the RLA, 45 U.S.C. § 151 First. KCS maintains its
principal office at 427 West 12" Street, Kansas City, Missouri 64105.

5. Plaintiff CSXT is a common carrier by rail under the Interstate Commerce Act
and a carrier as defined in Section 1 First of the RLA, 45 U.S.C. § 151 First. CSXT maintains its
principal office at 500 Water Street, Jacksonville, Florida 32202-4465.

6. Plaintiff NS is a common carrier by rail under the Interstate Commerce Act and a
carrier as defined in Section 1 First of the RLA, 45 U.S.C. § 151 First. NS maintains its
principal office at Three Commercial Place, Norfolk, Virginia 23510-2191.

7. Plaintiff UP is a common carrier by rail under the Interstate Commerce Act and a
carrier as defined in Section 1 First of the RLA, 45 U.S.C. § 151 First. UP maintains its
principal office at 1400 Douglas Street, STOP 0710, Omaha, NE 68179.

8. Defendant UTU is an unincorporated association and a labor organization as

defined in the RLA. The UTU is the collective bargaining representative of the crafts or classes
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of conductors, trainmen, and yardmen employed by the plaintiffs, and also represents those
employees in grievance and arbitration procedures under the RLA. Members of the UTU have
performed and continue to perform work in this judicial district. UTU maintains its principal
office at 14600 Detroit Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio 44107.

9. Defendant BLET is an unincorporated association and a labor organization as
defined in the RLA. The BLET is the collective bargaining representative of the craft or class of
locomotive engineers employed by the plaintiffs, and also represents those employees in
grievance and arbitration procedures under the RLA. Members of the BLET have performed and
continue to perform work in this judicial district. BLET maintains its principal office at 1370
Ontario Street, Cleveland Ohio 44113-1740.

10.  Venue is proper in this Court under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) because the defendants
are residents of, are found in or have agents within, or transact their affairs in this judicial
district, and the activities of the defendants giving rise to this action occurred or have effects in
this district.

The Parties’ Collective Bargaining Agreements

11. Plaintiffs aﬁd defendants are parties to a variety of collective bargaining
agreements, including both national agreements, which apply to multiple railroads, and local
agreements, which apply to a single railroad (or portion of a railroad). These agreements include
both express written agreements and implied agreements based on past practice. To the extent
that a subject is not covered by agreement, the railroads retain managerial prerogative to operate
as they deem prudent.

12. The parties’ collective bargaining agreements are designed to accommodate the

fact that regular attendance of operating employees is crucial to the carriers’ ability to run trains.
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Accordingly, operating employees are generally required to be available for work on a regular,
full-time basis. However, all operating employees are subject to the Hours of Service Act, 49
U.S.C. § 21101 et seq., which limits the number of hours a train crew may remain on duty and
requires a certain number of off-duty hours between returning to duty. In addition, operating
employees may ask to “lay off,” or temporarily absent themselves from active status. Under the
agreements, employee lay offs are subject to carrier approval, and requests to lay off may be
denied for, inter alia, the needs of carrier service.

13.  The parties’ agreements contain a variety of provisions that address specific work
assignments and related procedures governing utilization of crews who operate various types of
train service, including through-freight, locals, traveling switch engines and yard assignments.
In general, the agreements provide that trains will be operated by crew members who may be
“regularly assigned” (“‘assigned service”), or are part of a “pool” of employees (“pool service”)
or are on an “extra board” that is used to fill vacancies. All such assignments are normally filled
through seniority-based bidding.

14.  In assigned service, employees ordinarily work a pre-set number of days per
week. Most assigned service jobs are assigned for five days a week, but a minority of jobs are
established and advertised as six day or seven day assignments, with a specified period of time
off between each assignment. Employees who bid to such jobs are expected to work the number
of days per week in the assignment selected.

15.  Pool service is a mechanism for staffing trains on an as-needed basis. Employees
in pool service operate on a “first-in, first-out” basis. They are assigned to a “board” that rotates

from top to bottom. As trains prepare to depart from a terminal, employees are called in order

off this board to operate the train. The specific time that a pool crew will be called for service
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varies because these trains are not scheduled in advance. Rather, train departures vary based on
a number of ever-changing factors, such as customer requirements, weather, and traffic volume.
As a result, many pool freight employees work highly variable schedules, including weekends
and holidays.

16.  Extra boards provide for a group of employees who cover all vacancies in a
designated class of service and territory. As in pool service, extra board employees are assigned
to a board that rotates from top to bottom as employees are called for duty. Moreover, as in pool
service, work opportunities for extra board employees do not occur at predictable times. As a
result, extra board employees also work highly variable schedules, including weekends and
holidays.

17.  The parties’ collective bargaining agreements also address compensation for
operating employees. For some operating employees, the major component of compensation is
based on the mileage worked. However, extra board employees (as well as some pool service
employees) are also subject to “guarantees,” which are minimum periodic amounts of
compensation due each employee regardless of the total number of work opportunities.
Guarantee provisions in the parties’ agreements generally provide that the amount of the
guarantee may be reduced or prorated when an employee lays off or is otherwise unavailable for
service, and thereby are designed to ensure minimum levels of availability.

The Rail Safety Improvement Act

18.  The RSIA was passed in 2008. Among other provisions, the RSIA amends the

Hours of Service Act, 49 U.S.C. § 21101 et seq. In particular, Section 108(b) of the RSIA

provides that “a railroad carrier and its officers and agents may not require or allow a train

employee to:”
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(1) remain on duty, go on duty, wait for deadhead transportation, be in deadhead
transportation from a duty assignment to the place of final release, or be in any
other mandatory service for the carrier in any calendar month where the employee
has spent a total of 276 hours--

(A) on duty;

(B) waiting for deadhead transportation, or in deadhead transportation from a

duty assignment to the place of final release; or
(C) in any other mandatory service for the carrier;

(2) remain or go on duty for a period in excess of 12 consecutive hours;

(3) remain or go on duty unless that employee has had at least /0 consecutive
hours off duty during the prior 24 hours; or

(4) remain or go on duty after that employee has initiated an on-duty period each
day for--

(A) 6 consecutive days, unless that employee has had at least 48 consecutive
hours off duty at the employee’s home terminal during which time the employee
is unavailable for any service for any railroad carrier except that--

(1) an employee may work a seventh consecutive day if that employee
completed his or her final period of on-duty time on his or her sixth consecutive
day at a terminal other than his or her home terminal; and

(11) any employee who works a seventh consecutive day pursuant to
subparagraph (i) shall have at least 72 consecutive hours off duty at the
employee’s home terminal during which time the employee is unavailable for any
service for any railroad carrier; or

(B) except as provided in subparagraph (A), 7 consecutive days, unless that
employee has had at least 72 consecutive hours off duty at the employee’s home
terminal during which time the employee is unavailable for any service for any
railroad carrier, if--

(1) for a period of 18 months following the date of enactment of the Rail
Safety Improvement Act of 2008, an existing collective bargaining agreement
expressly provides for such a schedule or, following the expiration of 18 months
after the date of enactment of the Rail Safety Improvement Act of 2008, collective
bargaining agreements entered into during such period expressly provide for such
a schedule; '

(11) such a schedule is provided for by a pilot program authorized by a
collective bargaining agreement; or

(1i1) such a schedule is provided for by a pilot program under section 21108
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of this chapter related to employees’ work and rest cycles.

The Secretary may waive paragraph (4), consistent with the procedural

requirements of section 20103, if a collective bargaining agreement provides a

different arrangement and such an arrangement is in the public interest and

consistent with railroad safety.

P.L. 110-432, Div. A, Title I, § 108(a), 122 Stat. 4860 (emphasis added). The changes imposed
under Section 108(b) take effect on July 16, 2009.
Pending Disputes Over RSIA Implementation

19. The railroads and the unions are currently engaged in various disputes over the
interpretation and application of their collective bargaining agreements in light of the RSIA’s
changes to Hours of Service requirements. While the array of disputes varies from carrier to
carrier and from union to union, all of these disputes fall into one of the four separate categories
detailed below.

20.  First, the parties disagree about whether employee “unavailability” as a result of
Section 108(b) of RSIA may be factored into the calculation of compensation guarantees under
the parties’ agreements. The railroads contend that when an employee is “unavailable for any
service” as a result of reaching 6 or 7 consecutive days of service or the 276 hour monthly cap,
the guarantee owed to the employee may be reduced to reflect the employee’s unavailability. On
information and belief, the defendants deny that the railroads are entitled, under the agreements,
to reduce guarantee payments to reflect absences resulting from the requirements of Section
108(b) of the RSIA.

21. Second, the parties disagree about whether or under what circumstances a carrier
may hold an employee out of service when the employee is approaching the 276 hours monthly

cap. The carriers contend that they may hold an employee out of service if, by taking an

additional trip, the employee would be at risk of exceeding the 276 hour limit. On information
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and belief, the defendants deny that the carriers are entitled, under the agreements, to hold an
employee out of service in such circumstances.

22.  Third, the parties disagree about how to manage 6 or 7 day assignments under the
RSIA’s provisions. The carriers maintain that, to the extent that they retain 6 or 7 day
assignments and either do not seek or do not receive a waiver from the Secretary of
Transportation, the carriers will either (a) schedule RSIA-mandated unavailable days for any
employees working 6 or 7 day assignments, or (b) allow employees to work up to the maximum
consecutive days with a start permitted under the RSIA while retaining management authority to
fill blank jobs from an extra board. On information and belief, the defendants maintain that in
such circumstances, the agreements require the carriers to allow employees to self-schedule their
RSIA-mandated unavailable days.

23.  Fourth, the parties disagree about the extent to which employees are entitled to
continue receiving, after the implementation of the RSIA-mandated Hours of Service rules,
levels of pay that reflect the amount of work performed by employees prior to implementation of
such rules. The parties agree that at least some employees will, in the aggregate, have fewer
work opportunities as a result of the RSIA changes. The carriers contend that they are under no
obligation, under the agreements, to increase pay to ensure that such employees continue to
receive the same total compensation despite working less than prior to the implementation of the
RSIA changes. On information and belief, the defendants contend that employees’ pay must be
adjusted to compensate for the reduction in work opportunities resulting from the new law.

24.  The carriers are required by law to implement all of the changes required by the

RSIA, and they intend to do so on or prior to July 16, 2009. The carriers maintain that they have
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the right consistent with existing agreements to take all steps necessary to effectuate the RSIA-
mandated changes in Hours of Service rules.

25. On information and belief, the defendants contend that the actions taken by the
carriers to effectuate the RSTA-mandated changes in Hours of Service rules would override the
parties’ agreements, in violation of the RLA’s restrictions on unilateral changes in agreements.
See 45 U.S.C. § 152 Seventh.

26. Representatives of the railroads have asked the defendant unions to arbitrate any
RSIA-related disputes that remain unresolved by the date of implementation. The unions have
refused to agree to arbitration.

Count One
(Minor Dispute)

27.  Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference as if fully set forth herein the
allegations of paragraphs 1-26, above.

28. A “minor dispute” under the RLA is any dispute arising out of a grievance or over
the interpretation or application of the parties’ collective bargaining agreements concerning rates
of pay, rules, or working conditions. Such disputes are subject to conference between
representatives and mandatory arbitration by specialized boards of adjustment. 45U.S.C. §§ 152
Sixth, 153.

29.  Each dispute between the parties referred to in the preceding paragraphs is a
dispute over the interpretation or application of agreements, and therefore is a minor dispute
subject to the mandatory and exclusive procedures of Section 3 First of the RLA, 45 U.S.C.
§ 153 First.

30.  Because the unions deny that the disputes alleged herein are minor disputes or

otherwise contend that the railroads will violate § 2 Seventh of the RLA, 45 U.S.C. § 152
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Seventh if they implement the new RSIA Hours of Service rules, the plaintiff railroads are
entitled to a declaration under 28 U.S.C. § 2201(a) that the RSIA-related disputes alleged herein
are minor and subject to arbitration under Section 3 First of the RLA, 45 U.S.C. § 153 First.

Count Two
(Obligation to Settle Disputes)

31.  Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference as if fully set forth herein the
allegations of paragraphs 1-30, above.

32.  Under Section 2 First of the RLA, railroad employees and the unions that
represent them have a duty to “exert every reasonable effort to make and maintain agreements
concerning rates of pay, rules, and working conditions, and to settle a// disputes, whether rising
out of the application of such agreements or otherwise, in order to avoid any interruption to
commerce or to the operation of any carrier growing out of any dispute between the carrier and
the employees thereof.” 45 U.S.C. § 152 First (emphasis added).

33. By refusing to arbitrate disputes arising under existing agreements\ from
implementation of the RSIA, defendants have failed to exert every reasonable effort to make and
maintain agreements as required by § 2 First of the RLA.

34.  The plaintiff carriers are entitled to a declaration under 28 U.S.C. § 2201(a) that
defendants are obligated to exert every reasonable effort to make and maintain agreements with
respect to the disputes alleged herein arising from or relating to the implementation of the new
Hours of Service requirements under the RSIA, including arbitration of any such disputes that
remain unresolved as of July 16, 2009.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray that this Court:

A. Issue a declaratory judgment that the disputes alleged herein arising from or

relating to the implementation of the new Hours of Service requirements under the RSIA are

-10-
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minor disputes subject to arbitration under the exclusive and mandatory procedures of Section 3
of the Railway Labor Act, 45 U.S.C. § 153.

B. Issue a declaratory judgment the defendants are obligated under Section 2 First of
the Railway Labor Act, 45 U.S.C. § 2 First, to exert every reasonable effort to make and
maintain agreements with respect to the disputes alleged herein arising from or relating to the
implementation of the new Hours of Service requirements under the RSIA, including arbitration
of any such disputes that remain unresolved as of July 16, 2009.

C. Enter such other relief as the Court finds reasonable and proper including, without

limitation, reasonable costs and expenses, and attorney’s fees incurred in this proceeding.

-11 -
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Respectfully submitted,

W

JeffrgylR. Gpable (Local Counsel)
Texas Bar No. 00796659

KELLY HART & HALLMAN LLP
201 Main Street, Suite 2500

Fort Worth, Texas 76102

(817) 332-2500

(817) 878-9280 FAX

Email: jeff.grable@khh.com

Donald J. Munro (Lead Counsel)
D.C. Bar No. 453600

Jeffrey D. Fox

D.C. Bar No. 480230

GOODWIN PROCTER LLP

901 New York Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20001

(202) 346-4000

(202) 346-4444 FAX

Email: dmunro@goodwinprocter.com
Email: jfox@goodwinprocter.com
(pending admission Pro Hac Vice)

Charles W. Shewmake

Texas Bar No. 18257900

David M. Pryor

Texas Bar No. 00791470
BNSF RAILWAY COMPANY
2500 Lou Menk Drive, AOB-3
Fort Worth, Texas 76131-2828
(817) 352-2286

(817) 352-2399 FAX

Email: david.pryor@bnsf.com
Email: charles.shewmake@bnsf.com

ATTORNEYS OF RECORD FOR
PLAINTIFFS

-12 -
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Charles W. Shewmake
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BNSF Railway Company
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